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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Good afternoon.

          3  I am Council Member Gale Brewer.  I am glad to be

          4  here.  I Chair the Technology in Government

          5  Committee, and we are here to talk about 174-A. I am

          6  joined by Jeff Haberman, who is one of the leaders

          7  of our Legal Division; Bruce Lai, who is the Policy

          8  Analyst, who is usually with us.  His mother,

          9  unfortunately, died so he is not able to be here.

         10  And Donna De Costanzo, who is the Attorney for the

         11  Committee is at another meeting, so we are honored

         12  to have Jeff.

         13                 I wanted to thank everyone,

         14  particularly DOITT, which I will do in a minute.

         15  But we are here to talk about 174-A, it is a second

         16  or third hearing, which would require the Department

         17  of Information Technology and Telecommunications to

         18  make available periodic reports regarding data

         19  collections collected from the 311 Citizens Service

         20  Center.  And it is particularly apropos, because the

         21  Mayor has just released a Mayor's Management Report,

         22  which is excellent in what it discusses, but does

         23  make much reference to 311 and the data that is

         24  collected.  311 is an important backbone of City

         25  government.
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          2                 I just want to mention on an aside,

          3  sort of a note of humor.  I was unfortunately, or

          4  fortunately, in the office at 4:30 in the morning

          5  the other night, and a call came in.  I thought it

          6  was my husband.  Who else would call me at 4:30 in

          7  the morning?  But of course, typically West Side, it

          8  was a constituent.  And he had called 311, it was

          9  the Eve of Rosh HaShanah, and there was DOT work

         10  going on in the street, and he felt it was

         11  inappropriate, which I think it was also.  I think

         12  DOT works hard to keep work from going on near

         13  Schouls (phonetic), but in fact this was a community

         14  of observant people, and the noise was particularly

         15  disturbing.  So I got on with 311, and folks were

         16  very responsive.  And the next morning, the

         17  Commissioner of DOITT, Gino Menchini called and said

         18  they were working on it, I thought that was

         19  extremely nice that the material and information had

         20  gone all the way to the top.  And later on that

         21  afternoon, the Department of Transportation stopped

         22  the work for that evening.  So needless to say,

         23  individuals living at 91st and Riverside Drive are

         24  very pleased.  But it really is thanks to 311, and

         25  the work you do that people were responsive, and
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          2  that at that time of the morning, one was able to

          3  get somebody to help them.  So everybody at 186

          4  Riverside Drive thanks you, and I thank you.

          5                 It is a useful mechanism, but I think

          6  you will see from the Public Advocate today, and

          7  Community Board in particular, Community Boards,

          8  which are the backbone of planning in our

          9  neighborhoods, I would maintain in terms of

         10  grassroots planning, on the street planning, and

         11  District Service Cabinet planning.  They need the

         12  data, and that is why we have the Committee and this

         13  discussion.

         14                 So we have had a couple of hearings,

         15  and we hope to have more today.  Also, I want to

         16  thank DOITT, because I know, although, often they,

         17  you know, have questions about issues, are always

         18  willing to discuss them.  And so today, I am going

         19  to call our first witnesses, I hope they will

         20  identify themselves as the Deputy Commissioners

         21  within the Department of Information Technology and

         22  Telecommunications.  And again, thank you for being

         23  here today.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         25  Good afternoon. My name is Lawrence Knafo, and I am
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          2  the First Deputy Commissioner for the Department of

          3  Information Technology and Communications, also

          4  known as DOITT.  With me today is Agostino Cangemi,

          5  who is our Deputy Commissioner for Franchise

          6  Administration, as well as the agency's General

          7  Counsel.

          8                 I am happy to hear the story, and I

          9  am happy that the noise problem was resolved.

         10  Actually, at 4:45 in the morning, before Gino got

         11  the call, I got the call.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Oh no.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:  So

         14  we were all up that night.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Oh no, sorry.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:  So

         17  that makes things a little better, we all get

         18  involved.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  I know.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:  On

         21  behalf of DOITT, I would like to thank you, Council

         22  Member Brewer and members of the Technology in

         23  Government Committee for their continued interest in

         24  the success of 311.  I look forward to discussing

         25  the proposed Intro. 174, on discussing on how we can
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          2  make it better.

          3                 Today, I would like to provide you,

          4  first, with an update on how DOITT has worked to

          5  increase public access to 311 data, and how we have

          6  actually collaborated with the Community Boards to

          7  provide them with the data that they require.  I

          8  would also like to outline our plans to continue

          9  making 311 data accessible to the City Council, the

         10  Community Boards, and the public as a whole.

         11                 Finally, I would like to address some

         12  concerns that we have with the proposed legislation,

         13  and hopefully talk about how we can work those out.

         14                 From the very beginning of the 311

         15  initiative, we realized that in order to be

         16  successful, 311 would have to be implemented in

         17  phases.  The goal of our first phase was to improve

         18  access to government information and services.  We

         19  feel strongly that we have accomplished this goal.

         20  To date, more than 11 million people have turned to

         21  311 to provide them with quick, easy access to the

         22  information that they desire, 24 hours a day, 7 days

         23  a week, 365 days a year, and in 171 different

         24  languages.

         25                 After launching 311, our immediate
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          2  focus was to improve the manner in which we provide

          3  services.  To do this we met with elected officials,

          4  Community Board representatives, and various

          5  community- based organizations.  From these meetings

          6  we made significant improvements to the 311 system.

          7  We believe that this is an ongoing effort, and we

          8  continually welcome further suggestions and

          9  feedback.

         10                 Now that 311 has become a fixture in

         11  City life and in the way that government operates,

         12  greater attention is being paid to developing tools

         13  that aid in agency management and accountability.

         14                 In April of this year, we came before

         15  this body to explain how 311 works.  Specifically,

         16  we explained what callers can expect when they dial

         17  311, how we categorize calls, the 311 knowledge

         18  base, call taker training, and the most commonly

         19  received calls at 311.

         20                 311 has now been running for a little

         21  over a year and a half.  In that time we have

         22  received, as I said, more than 11 million calls.

         23  That is more than one call for each New Yorker.  As

         24  we stated in our April testimony, 311's success can

         25  be measured in ways well beyond the sheer call
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          2  volume statistics.  The 311's most profound

          3  achievement is the improved service quality now

          4  available to individuals, businesses, and visitors.

          5  New Yorkers are seeing this change every day.  In

          6  fact if you read the New York Times' Metropolitan

          7  Diary this past Monday you would have seen a story

          8  that New Yorkers are no longer surprised when

          9  government works. The ease and convenience of 311

         10  has empowered New Yorkers to take action, and it has

         11  provided agencies with the critical information they

         12  need to serve the City better.

         13                 I will just take a second to describe

         14  that story, because it was similar to yours.  Two

         15  people in Queens, I believe it was Astoria, sitting

         16  outside their house for days and days, having a

         17  horrible smell coming from the sewer.  And after

         18  about five days, they looked at each other and said,

         19  how is it that this is not getting fixed?  And they

         20  called 311 and they found out that they were the

         21  first person to report it.  Everyone in the

         22  neighborhood had just ignored it.  They were

         23  actually on their stoop waiting for a car to come

         24  pick them up.  And before their car got there, a DEP

         25  sewer truck pulled up and started fixing the
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          2  problem, and the problem was fixed.  And you know,

          3  we believe that that is a great story of how 311 is

          4  starting to work and make New Yorkers accountable

          5  for fixing problems and making the City work better.

          6                 So 311 has influenced how the Mayor

          7  and Commissioners manage the City by providing a

          8  comprehensive network of information almost in real

          9  time.  This has set the stage for the development of

         10  tools that will improve management, and enable us to

         11  allocate resources and personnel across agencies

         12  more effectively.

         13                 An example of how 311 data is being

         14  used in the recently released Mayor's Management

         15  Report, the MMR for fiscal 2004 now includes 311

         16  data to show how certain agencies are responding to

         17  request for service.  Specifically, the MMR now

         18  includes data on the number of requests made to an

         19  agency, the average time it takes to fulfill a

         20  service request, and the number of outstanding

         21  requests at the end of each month.  It should be

         22  noted that this current edition of the MMR only

         23  includes 311 data for certain agencies.  These

         24  agencies are the Department of Education, Department

         25  of Transportation, Department of Information
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          2  Technology and Telecommunications, Department of

          3  Records and Information Services, Department of

          4  Finance, Department of Consumer Affairs, and the

          5  Taxi and Limousine Commission.

          6                 Another illustration of how 311 data

          7  is being used to inform the public in the My

          8  Neighborhood Statistic Tool available on NYC.gov.

          9  In the past, the My Neighborhood Statistic Tool was

         10  limited to viewing only MMR specific data.  Today,

         11  this tool has been enhanced to include monthly and

         12  year- to- date data gathered from the 311 system.

         13  We also plan on adding additional data sets in the

         14  future.  By using My Neighborhood, New Yorkers can

         15  type an address and find out corresponding

         16  statistical information about the area, and how that

         17  area compares to other areas throughout the City.

         18  For instance, one can learn that the number of noise

         19  complaints reported in their neighborhood in the

         20  past year or month, and learn how noisy their

         21  neighborhood is relative to other neighborhoods.

         22                 While we are committed to providing

         23  the public with information from 311, we want them

         24  to ensure that the data provided is understandable,

         25  meaningful, and useful, so that it can be applied
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          2  towards problem solving.  If the current language

          3  proposed in Intro. 174- A were followed to the

          4  letter, the reports required would result in pages

          5  upon pages of data that is cumbersome and difficult

          6  to apply toward any practical purpose.  In fact, we

          7  are concerned that a great deal of resources may

          8  need to be spent producing these reports when their

          9  usefulness in their present form is dubious.

         10  However, we thank you for having us testify before

         11  this Committee, and for your continual willingness

         12  to cooperate and communicate with our staff so that

         13  an outcome can be reached that is beneficial to the

         14  public.

         15                 Another important point to consider

         16  is the matter of personal privacy of our callers.

         17  The 311 call center's commitment to maintaining the

         18  confidentiality of the callers, and the security of

         19  the information they provide, is set forth in the

         20  311 privacy policy.  The 311 private policy is a

         21  formal statement of principles and procedures that

         22  calls center staff are required to follow in order

         23  to ensure the protection and security of all

         24  information collected at 311.  Callers to 311 have

         25  an expectation of privacy, and must not be given the
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          2  impression that the information conveyed may somehow

          3  be used for some unintended or undisclosed purpose.

          4  Since certain services require callers to provide

          5  personal information, such as their name, telephone

          6  number, address, or other descriptive information to

          7  aid in agency response, it may be easy in some cases

          8  to infer who the caller is or the subject of the

          9  call was, if given all the data.  One negative

         10  outcome of this would be the creation of potential

         11  risk of retaliation by the subject of the complaint.

         12    If the 311 privacy policy were weaken, and callers

         13  thought their personal information was less secure,

         14  fewer people would call 311, and the benefits of 311

         15  would be undermined.

         16                 We have significant concerns over the

         17  language in Proposed Intro. 174- A.  By providing a

         18  detailed report that includes service request

         19  numbers is required in the bill, we are jeopardizing

         20  the privacy and safety of our callers.   Using these

         21  service request numbers, any caller can dial 311 and

         22  obtain information including name, home address,

         23  telephone number, as well as other personal and

         24  confidential information.

         25                 While we have some concerns with this
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          2  bill in its present form, we want to reiterate that

          3  we are committed to working closely with the Council

          4  and the Community Boards to address their needs.

          5  Long before 311 became operational, DOITT actually

          6  provided each Community Board with a computer and

          7  high speed Internet access along with the technical

          8  support person to help keep those computers running.

          9    We have had a good relationship with the Community

         10  Boards in the past, and we want to keep it that way.

         11  That is why we have met repeatedly with the

         12  Community Boards to hear suggestions on ways that

         13  311 can improve service levels to the public, while

         14  also helping the Community Boards better serve their

         15  constituents.  From this process, we recently

         16  completed an upgrade to the 311 system that allows

         17  us to include the Community Board number in certain

         18  service requests.  The 311 can now provide reports

         19  to each Community Board on how many service request

         20  of each type has been reported in their district.

         21                 We have also met with Community

         22  Boards to answer their questions about the changes

         23  in agency operations that have occurred since agency

         24  call centers were consolidated into 311.  We have

         25  given Community Board representatives tours of the
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          2  call center facility and instructions on the most

          3  effective ways to use the system, when calling 311

          4  on behalf of their constituents.

          5                 The last time we came before this

          6  Committee, we made a commitment to meet with the

          7  Community Boards and work with them to incorporate

          8  their needs regarding 311 reporting.  Based on the

          9  requirements identified at those meetings, which

         10  were held over the summer, we are in the processed

         11  of developing a feature within the 311 system that

         12  will allow call takers to record when a Community

         13  Board representative calls in a request for service

         14  on behalf of one of their constituents.  This new

         15  capability will allow 311 to produce a monthly

         16  report that will be distributed to the Community

         17  Boards directly.  This report will include detailed

         18  information on each of the calls submitted by that

         19  particular Community Board.

         20                 As we explained in April, there are

         21  many behind the scene complexities involved in

         22  operating 311.  Among the most complex is the fact

         23  that many calls to 311 require the use of systems

         24  that are owned and managed by agencies other than

         25  DOITT. The agencies that still use their own systems
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          2  in the 311 Call Center are the Sanitation

          3  Department, Transportation Department, DEP, HPD, and

          4  the Buildings Department.  Furthermore, these

          5  agencies, or legacy systems as they are known, are

          6  needed to handle many of our most frequently

          7  requested services.  The decision to keep these

          8  systems was based on a number of factors.  One main

          9  concern was the prohibitive cost of replacing these

         10  systems, some of which are relatively new and

         11  already had a great deal of funds invested in them.

         12  In addition, these systems often support agency

         13  functions beyond complaint intake, such as resource

         14  and asset management, in some cases, even

         15  scheduling.  These systems cannot be eliminated

         16  without disrupting the agency in the way it

         17  functions.

         18                 Moving these different systems

         19  outside of their original agency and making them

         20  work under the new 311 umbrella was one of our

         21  biggest challenges during the initial stages of the

         22  311 project.  It also made a comprehensive and

         23  consistent reporting model next to impossible.

         24  However, we are beginning to work pass that

         25  obstacle.  We have been developing a new reporting
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          2  and analytic tool that will enable us to draw data

          3  from these desperate systems and produce a uniformed

          4  series of reports.  While we have successfully

          5  completed the pilot phase of this project, there is

          6  still work to be done.  It is also important to

          7  understand that 311 does not collect the same level

          8  of information for each call.  Some calls require a

          9  significant depth of detail, while others require no

         10  caller information whatsoever.  For example, if you

         11  call to ask when City beaches are open for the

         12  season, no one will ask you for your address, and

         13  there is no private information recorded.  The

         14  information is simply conveyed from the 311 Call

         15  Center representative to the caller, and the call

         16  ends.  However, if you want to report your next door

         17  neighbor for loud music, an address must be recorded

         18  and validated so that the police can respond.

         19  Therefore, we only have records of caller location

         20  for service requests that require address data in

         21  order to be fulfilled.

         22                 While our concerns over the current

         23  legislation are significant, we understand the need

         24  to provide 311 data to the City Council, the

         25  Community Boards, and the public as a whole.  In
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          2  order to make this legislation effective, we want to

          3  reiterate our willingness to form effective

          4  partnerships so that all parties needs are

          5  addressed.  We look forward to working with the

          6  members of Council so that this legislation can be

          7  drafted in matter that provides the proper level of

          8  detail, while maintaining caller privacy and

          9  ensuring that the information provided can go

         10  towards problem solving.

         11                 Thank you, and I would be happy to

         12  answer any questions you may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         14  much, I am honored that we have been joined by

         15  Council Member Sanders from Queens, and Council

         16  Member DeBlasio from Brooklyn.  And I know that

         17  Council Member James is on her way, and we look

         18  forward to having her.

         19                 I have a couple of questions, and

         20  then I am sure my colleagues have questions.  Thank

         21  you for your testimony.  But the one question I

         22  think we might have mentioned before, but I still

         23  want to ask it again, is, the Community Boards'

         24  staff and the Community Boards are City agencies.

         25  So when you say privacy, what is the difference
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          2  between somebody at the other end of a legacy

          3  system, or even within your 311 Call Center having

          4  access to information versus a City employee who is

          5  working at a Community Board?  And I do not mean a

          6  volunteer Community Board member, as I have been in

          7  the past, I mean somebody who works for the City, a

          8  City employee.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         10  Sure.  I think the most important concern, and I

         11  think about this every time I call 311, is that when

         12  I dial 311 I know that I am giving my information to

         13  the 311 call taker.  And the 311 call taker, in my

         14  mind, is giving that information only to the person,

         15  the only other person that needs to know that, who

         16  is the person who is going to fulfill that service

         17  request.  And beyond that, we try not to have that

         18  information shared.  In fact, we do not let our call

         19  takers go in the system and just look at information

         20  to see calls, much like the agencies do not allow

         21  people to look in the systems.  They allow only the

         22  operator on the receiving end of that terminal to

         23  look at it and dispatch it out.

         24                 And we feel that the more you open up

         25  the system to people looking at calls and looking at
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          2  who is providing information, what there address is,

          3  what there phone number is, there is a real privacy

          4  concern.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.  The other

          6  question I have, is, when you have had your meetings

          7  with different Community Boards, I know you have had

          8  a few, what came out of them, and what are some

          9  recommendations that the Community Boards made that

         10  you feel you can address?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         12  Sure.  Well there were definitely some issues that

         13  were raised.  Among the first issues the Community

         14  Boards had felt that when 311 came, they lost their

         15  contact with the agencies.  That the de facto answer

         16  was, we cannot talk to you anymore, talk to 311.

         17  And one of the things that we have tried to do to

         18  work with the agencies and the Community Boards is

         19  to say that there is no reason a relationship

         20  between a Community Board and an agency should go

         21  away because of 311.  Community Boards have a

         22  purpose, and they should be dealing with the

         23  agencies.  And where they see problems, they should

         24  be escalating those within the agencies.  So the

         25  Community Boards still can call the agencies, and
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          2  they have their liaisons that they can work with.

          3                 The other big concern with the

          4  Community Boards was that they wanted to know what

          5  happened when they did call 311, what happened with

          6  the service request.  So if somebody called about a

          7  noise complaint, and they called the Community Board

          8  directly, and the Community Board said we will take

          9  care of this, and they call 311, the Community

         10  Boards, at first, had now way of following up on

         11  that complaint.  What we have done now, is we are

         12  allowing Community Boards to enter complaints on

         13  behalf of their constituents, get service request

         14  numbers, call back on behalf of their constituents

         15  to get status.  And then the work we have done over

         16  the summer, that will be coming out shortly, allows

         17  us to provide the Community Boards with an actual

         18  report that details all of the complaints that they

         19  have put into the system, followed up by status and

         20  what has happened with the call.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  And do all the

         22  Community Boards know that?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         24  Yes, well the Community Boards that we were working

         25  with know that, when we had some varying levels of
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          2  participation.  So I think we need to get that

          3  message out still.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  All right,

          5  because I think what the Community Boards would want

          6  is maybe something that you do feel infringes on the

          7  privacy, but would be much more, direct access to

          8  the database, so that, in fact, they would not have

          9  to call you, they could do it themselves in terms of

         10  the follow- up.

         11                 But what you are saying is that you

         12  prefer to keep it internalized than give them, you

         13  know, information about the follow- up.  You know,

         14  that is the request of people who are not sort of

         15  privy to some of your discussions.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         17  Yes, I mean, we are getting, you know, we are moving

         18  into the day at 311 now where we start taking calls

         19  over areas that have great confidentiality and

         20  concern.  We are moving into some medical areas

         21  where we are going to take information from people.

         22  You know, if it is something as simple as a request

         23  for literature about a medical problem, that may be

         24  something you do not want shared with other people.

         25  We want to limit the number of people that see that
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          2  information.  And we really feel that that is

          3  important.

          4                 I think, you know, if the public

          5  found out that they call 311, they ask for something

          6  that is private to them, and they feel it is

          7  confidential between them and 311, and then they

          8  found out that people at different agencies could

          9  see that information, I really think that they might

         10  think twice about calling again.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, I think

         12  the issue is ongoing discussions, because what you

         13  consider privacy, obviously, is a privacy issue.

         14  But the question is, how does the Community Board

         15  know what the trends are, how does the Community

         16  Board know in areas that are not confidential what

         17  the trends are?  And when you look at the Mayor's

         18  press releases to the wonderful number of topics

         19  that are, I would consider planning related, I

         20  checked almost every single one, from police

         21  incidents to the potholes to the cleanup.  Even to

         22  the fact that third graders do or do not pass,

         23  because, if in fact third graders are not passing,

         24  it could be the school closed the after- school

         25  program, and et cetera.  So you know it could be the
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          2  fact that we need a capital request that that

          3  neighborhood has to push for larger school

          4  facilities so the classes are small.  I mean these

          5  are the kind of trends that we are looking for.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

          7  Absolutely.  And I think that is exactly what we

          8  want to work with you to figure out what data we

          9  should be providing.  I will give you a great

         10  example. This is my personal one, I think I talked

         11  about this last time.  It is an ongoing noise

         12  problem that I, personally, have.  And when I looked

         13  at, I sort of did a little bit of a 311 case study

         14  on myself, and I called 311, and I called over and

         15  over again to try to deal with the noise problem

         16  outside of my house.  And the police responded, and

         17  they fixed it when the noise problem was there when

         18  they got there, and when it wasn't, it did not get

         19  fixed.

         20                 But by showing that data in an

         21  aggregate form, when I was able to take all of the

         22  calls that I had placed, and then show them on a

         23  map, you start to see that there really is a problem

         24  in my neighborhood, on my specific block.  Because

         25  what you realize it is not just Larry Knafo calling,
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          2  it is Larry Knafo and all of his neighbors.  And you

          3  can show that in a graphical format, and you see

          4  that, you know what the Police Precinct really needs

          5  to pay attention to this block, because when you

          6  look at it compared to the rest of the precinct, it

          7  is one of the worst blocks.

          8                 And those are the types of things we

          9  want to show you.  And I think that is what is going

         10  to be very valuable to you, so that the Community

         11  Boards can go to their local precinct commander and

         12  say, look at this block, you have problem here, tell

         13  me what you are doing to fix it, and that is the

         14  value that we think we can provide.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.  Council

         16  Member Sanders.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Thank you,

         18  Council member. Thank you, Madam Chair, I stand

         19  corrected.  I think that this is a very worthy

         20  hearing, and I think it is just good that we are

         21  here.

         22                 Good afternoon, First Deputy

         23  Commissioner Knafo. Good afternoon to, your name

         24  escapes me, Sir.  I want to share some observations.

         25    And my name is James Sanders, Jr., I represent the
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          2  31st in Queens.  Some Community Boards have come to

          3  me and have said that the 311 operators are asking

          4  them for information, they are asking them for help

          5  and advice.  And you know, they have found it rather

          6  unique that a body that is supposed to help provide

          7  has been requesting.  So they use this to say that

          8  if this is the case where we may be requested

          9  information, than certainly they should share

         10  information with us, us being the Community Boards,

         11  of course.

         12                 I would urge you to share as much as

         13  you can.  The Community Boards are the smallest part

         14  of City government.  They are the first line, if you

         15  wish, of City government, and we need to fortify

         16  this line to ensure that the work is done.

         17                 I also see no reason why more

         18  information cannot be shared with Council members.

         19  I would love to know the trends in my community, I

         20  would love to know where are the bulk of the calls,

         21  where are the bulk of complaints, I would love to

         22  know if there are real pothole issues, let me deal

         23  with that.  If there are mosquito or whatever issues

         24  there are.  I certainly know that I am a part of

         25  City government.  I receive a check with the little
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          2  emblem all too infrequently.  Yes, I see it, it is

          3  every once in a while I get a reminder.  And if that

          4  were not enough, the members of my community

          5  certainly let me know that I am responsible for

          6  every single pothole, or any problem that is in my

          7  district.  So I would love any information on

          8  trends, or things, good and bad, that is coming

          9  through my district, I sure would like to know it.

         10  And I have no problems with my Community Boards

         11  knowing these things.

         12                 I understand that there may be some

         13  privacy issues. Of course, nobody wants to, nobody

         14  should want to have everyone's personal information

         15  on some display.  But there must be some happy

         16  medium, there must be a way of sharing far more than

         17  what we are sharing now, with far more people than

         18  we are sharing it now.

         19                 What are your thoughts on this, Sir?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:  We

         21  agree.  We think that you should have the data, you

         22  are the ones that are dealing at the local level

         23  with getting problems fixed.  And I mentioned, we

         24  sort of cut the 311 program into some phases.  And

         25  our first phase was, let's get this up and running,
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          2  let's make people be able to get to government

          3  quickly.  And I think we have done that.

          4                 Right after that we moved towards,

          5  okay, we got it up and running, it was a crazy year,

          6  people are calling now.  Let's look back and see how

          7  we can make things really good.  Let's see if there

          8  are problems that came around when we first made the

          9  system, and that is when we started talking with the

         10  Community Boards, and people that used 311 to see

         11  what their concerns are.  And that has happened, and

         12  it is happening, it is going to keep happening.

         13                 And while we were doing that, we

         14  started looking towards of what we thought of as

         15  phase 2- A I will say, which is getting the data to

         16  be used to manage and hold agency Commissioners

         17  accountable, and hold agencies accountable.  And we

         18  have started doing that, and we have been able to

         19  really successfully do it for specific problems.  So

         20  if we want to look at something, a pothole problem,

         21  or whether there are dirty lots, or dirty streets,

         22  we can go in the system and do some manual work, and

         23  pull out some good data, and look at a specific

         24  problem, and really get a lot of information.  And

         25  we have done that in many cases, and give that to
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          2  the agencies and try to do it over and over again.

          3  And I think we have seen examples of where agencies

          4  have used that data to really improve their

          5  operations.

          6                 DOT cleared up a backlog on pothole

          7  complaints. They went down from 18 days to 7 days to

          8  fix a pothole.  They had a backlog that was cleared

          9  up like 65 percent within a month of getting the

         10  data.  The problem was that we were not able to do

         11  that fast enough.  So if each one of the City

         12  Council members wanted to have that data for their

         13  district, I had two people doing manual processes to

         14  make this happen, and that just was not going to

         15  work.

         16                 So what we have done, is we have

         17  started putting a tool in place, called an analytic

         18  project that is going to automate much of what we

         19  are doing.  And we just got the pilot going, we

         20  actually started taking data from the 311 system, as

         21  well as one of the agency systems, which was a big

         22  technical task.  And we are now looking at how we

         23  should create reports from that.  And as we move

         24  forward with that, we want to create you those

         25  reports, and I think we want to sit down with you to
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          2  try to figure out what the right reports are to

          3  create, and get you that, we think you should have

          4  it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS:  Madam Chair,

          6  one last point.  I just want to go on the record and

          7  say I want to be the test case here.  We want the

          8  31st to be the pilot program, where we look and see.

          9    I think that it gives, not only a chance to hold

         10  Commissioners accountable, but it gives the public a

         11  chance to hold the City Council responsible.  I

         12  think that all of my Council people do not mind

         13  being held responsible, if we are given the tools

         14  and the information.  So I think it is a very

         15  healthy thing, and I want to praise the 311 system

         16  with certain things that it still needs to work

         17  through.  And part of that is sharing, as I want to

         18  praise the Chair of this Committee for doing such

         19  good work on this issue.

         20                 I apologize as I must leave soon, but

         21  this was very good, Madam Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         23  much, and the person with Larry Knafo is Deputy

         24  Commissioner and General Counsel, Augie Cangemi.  He

         25  is terrific, and now we have Mr. DeBlasio.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  I would

          3  like to echo Council Member Sanders' remarks by

          4  suggesting that the 39th District would be an ideal

          5  cross- section of New York City to use. I yield, I

          6  yield to the gentleman.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:  We

          8  will get you both.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  I am a big

         10  fan of 311.  I liked the sound of it in the

         11  beginning, I had my doubts about how it would work,

         12  it has worked better than anyone could expect.  You

         13  guys deserve immense credit.  I think it has given a

         14  lot of folks more faith in government.  And to me,

         15  that when we are doing this work there is always

         16  more than one layer.  There is the operational layer

         17  of getting the job done.  But there is a profound

         18  challenge that we are facing every day to make

         19  people have faith in what government can do for

         20  them, and what their taxpayer dollars are achieving,

         21  et cetera.  So you deserve a lot of credit on that

         22  level.

         23                 I will take issue with you, because

         24  your testimony seems to me to be approaching this

         25  legislation with a glass half empty, when, in fact,
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          2  I think it could be approached with a glass half

          3  full.  And I am not in any way belittling your

          4  concerns around privacy, those are supreme.  I am a

          5  little confused why certain standards cannot be

          6  developed to segment requests where there are

          7  greater privacy concerns from those where there are

          8  not.  I think it is a little too broad brush to say,

          9  for example, obvious medical or criminal justice

         10  requests.  No one is trying to equate them with a

         11  Sanitation or a DOT request.  I cannot believe that

         12  is not a way to figure out what should be off

         13  limits, and what, in fact, can flow more freely.

         14                 And I also think in the vein of not

         15  only trying to continue the process of building

         16  faith in government, but also in the sense of

         17  operationally of showing people the outcomes of what

         18  they had reported, and the concerns they raised.  I

         19  think we are doing ourselves a disservice to not

         20  close that loop better.  I mean, obviously, if

         21  someone reports a pothole, and a week later the

         22  pothole is filled, they know the pothole is filled,

         23  if they are in the proximity of the pothole.  But

         24  there are a lot of other things that are not so

         25  obvious.  And the tendency is for people to believe

                                                            33

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  that their concern has not been met.  Maybe the

          3  cynicalness of our, you know, all of us here in this

          4  City, but also because there is just not a lot of

          5  history of the needs being met, you know, most of

          6  what people have seen from government.

          7                 So I think what part of what is so

          8  important about this bill, and I give Council Member

          9  Brewer a lot of credit here, is where it is not just

         10  how do we use the information for operational

         11  purposes, it is also how do we show our constituents

         12  that something happened, that their complaint

         13  matter.

         14                 I have called 311 a number of times,

         15  for example, a broken streetlight or something like

         16  that.  And of course there is no mechanism to get

         17  back to me and say, okay, it is taken care of. And I

         18  think that is a little unfortunate.  But I think if

         19  you came down to that micro- level, the ability of

         20  all of us, who are sort of this united front of

         21  local government, from the Executive Branch, the

         22  Legislative Branch, the Community Boards being able

         23  to say, okay, here are some challenges our community

         24  has face recently, and here are the results, and

         25  these things are done.  And they were done in this
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          2  time frame, and here are the specifics right down to

          3  the point that people care about what happened on

          4  this block.  I think that is very powerful.

          5                 And I think it also, therefore, this

          6  is a huge ongoing issue, we just had a hearing on

          7  the Human Rights Commission, and I think there is a

          8  big parallel here.  Not enough people are reporting

          9  what they are experiencing to the Human Rights

         10  Commission.  Well I think people will report more

         11  when they see more success.  It is let the market

         12  decide.  People will go some place where their

         13  needs, if they see their needs satisfied.  So why

         14  not show them, in fact, you want to be at 311,

         15  because look at all this stuff it has achieved.

         16                 So I would ask you to take a little

         17  bit more positive look at this legislation, and I

         18  think, you know, we can find a lot of common ground.

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         20  Yes, I really do think we can.  And I think, you

         21  know, our concerns were with a broad brush on this

         22  legislation that just saying, let's give all of

         23  these reports across the board.  And I think what we

         24  want to do is work with you down to the detailed

         25  level, to say, you should have that information
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          2  about potholes, you should have it about street

          3  lights.  But the medical stuff we should really take

          4  out, you know, some of the more private information

          5  we should remove.  And I think you are absolutely

          6  right.  And I think we can do that, and we are

          7  optimistic about it.  We really do believe that this

          8  data should get out there.  We think it is going to

          9  help make the agencies work better, and smarter, and

         10  faster.  And it is going to let the public know what

         11  has happened with their calls.

         12                 We also have thought about what you

         13  said about letting the public know what happened

         14  with their calls.  We believe that that is something

         15  should be a capability of 311.  We would love to be

         16  able to call back every caller and tell them what

         17  happened.  Unfortunately, that would mean doubling,

         18  or nearly doubling the number of staff that we have,

         19  and that is just not a reality.

         20                 So we have looked at some technical

         21  solutions to that.  And some of the things that we

         22  have thought about were when people called, and this

         23  does not cover the whole City, there is still a

         24  digital divide, obviously, but taking email

         25  addresses and doing automated email responses.

                                                            36

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  Posting information on a web site, getting that data

          3  in a larger fashion to show neighborhood trends of

          4  what is happening.  And these are all things that we

          5  are trying to do.

          6                 And I think the email response may be

          7  a first step, even though it will not get to

          8  everybody, but it will get to a good portion of our

          9  callers.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  I think

         11  that is very productive.  But I just want to give

         12  you another example, I do not know if you ever have

         13  the singular joy of working on a City Council

         14  member's local staff, or being a local City Council

         15  member.  But one of the things, and I think Gale

         16  would agree with me on this and James would, that,

         17  you know, in a million years we would not leave the

         18  situation hanging in terms of the constituent not

         19  hearing the outcome.

         20                 Now that is not a dis (sic) on 311,

         21  it is an entirely different construct.  You know we

         22  are dealing in thousands of cases a year, and you

         23  are dealing with millions of cases a year. But I

         24  think it is great to take an email address when it

         25  works.  I think that is a great step in the right
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          2  direction.  All the other things you said are great,

          3  but I think, think about a simple point here, just

          4  imagine tear down all the walls, we are all

          5  colleagues, we all are on a common mission here and

          6  each Council member knew enough, not every single,

          7  little detail, but enough that said, okay, here are

          8  the potholes, here are the parks problems, here is

          9  whatever, the specific problems that got solved.

         10                 Well, first of all, there is going to

         11  be a lot of overlapping complaints that we have

         12  gotten, and the constituent visits, phone calls,

         13  letters we have gotten.  We are going to let people

         14  it has got solved, that is what we do, you know.  It

         15  is part of the nature of our relationship to our

         16  constituents.  We have every incentive in the world

         17  to want to come back to them and say, your pothole

         18  got filled, your park got cleaned up, your street

         19  lamp got fixed.

         20                 So why are we not doing each other a

         21  great favor by sharing that information so there is

         22  a greater likelihood it does get back to the person

         23  who had the concern?  And again, therefore, creates

         24  an atmosphere where more good information flows, and

         25  there is more incentive that people report things
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          2  that they may know about.  I mean, as ramifications

          3  in terms of public safety, all sorts of things, when

          4  people start to feel comfortable reporting things

          5  and believing in it.

          6                 But that is an example right there,

          7  if I had a thousand contacts, a thousand items that

          8  were 311 items that got resolved in my district in

          9  the course of a year, we would let those thousand

         10  people know by phone or by mail, in a way, at this

         11  moment, you could not.  And that is great for all of

         12  us.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:  I

         14  think I am, you are right, I am just worried again,

         15  it is the scaling issue.  It is how do we get 11

         16  million calls in a year handled, even if we divided

         17  it by Council District.  How do we make sure that we

         18  have a consistent way of getting a response back to

         19  people.  And knowing that, whatever that method is,

         20  whether it is us calling back or some of your staff

         21  calling back from each Council member, that people

         22  are going to get notified, not just from one

         23  district office, but from all of them, and then on

         24  every call.

         25                 So I think you are right, that is
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          2  something that we need to look towards finding a

          3  solution for, and we should start looking at that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  I have one

          5  more thing, if I may, Madam Chair?  Try a pilot on

          6  potholes, or try a pilot on, you know, Sanitation

          7  complaints with either all the Council members or

          8  some sample Council members around the City, and

          9  just see.  And I think you will be pleasantly

         10  surprised about the amount of product you get in

         11  terms of the communication flow.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         14  much, Bill. Just to follow- up on that, I think you

         15  are on the right track when you state that the

         16  agencies would benefit from knowing exactly what was

         17  handled and what wasn't on a consistent basis, as

         18  well as the Council members and the Community Board.

         19                 I would just say something that is

         20  not in my interest, but the West Side, I am sure

         21  calls 311.  I know that Chancellor Kline when he

         22  joined the staff called me and said at the

         23  Department of Education he receives more calls from

         24  West Side parents than the rest of the City

         25  combined.  So I understand the West Side calling
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          2  311.  But those communities where 311 may not be

          3  called as much, I would think that would be

          4  something that your agencies would want know,

          5  because does that mean that potholes are filled

          6  less, probably not, because I do not think that is

          7  the way in which DOT operates.

          8                 But those are the kinds of pieces of

          9  information, it might be the Community Board in

         10  their community might want to know that their

         11  constituents and their residences are not calling

         12  311 and needs to be publicized more.  So that is

         13  another reason for this data gathering.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         15  That is an excellent, great point.  Because one of

         16  the things that we are trying to do, is to identify

         17  areas in the City where we do not see as much 311

         18  call volume as the rest of the City, and direct our

         19  marketing efforts towards those areas.

         20                 We actually just did something with a

         21  group called Nice, who is an advocacy group for

         22  immigrant community and a non English- speaking

         23  community.  And they came and did, almost an audit

         24  on 311, and they looked at how we provide services

         25  to non- English speaking New Yorkers.  And they came
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          2  back with a series of recommendations, and those

          3  recommendations had, what we thought were a lot of

          4  valid points in them.  And we implemented a good

          5  portion of them, and we are in the process of

          6  implementing, I would say the majority of the rest.

          7                 They actually just did a press

          8  conference a few days ago, and their message was

          9  that while the non- English- speaking community in

         10  New York is under- utilizing 311, 311 provides the

         11  right services for them, and the message should get

         12  out that they should be using 311.  And we have been

         13  working with the Mayor's Office of Immigrant

         14  Affairs, as well as local groups, some City Council

         15  members, to get marketing materials out into those

         16  neighborhoods where those people are from, to get

         17  them to schools, to hospitals, wherever it is that

         18  we can get our message out where we think people are

         19  under- served by 311, we want to do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  And of course

         21  all of this will help all of us thinking about the

         22  budget.  Agencies use it now for, I think, some

         23  budget recommendations.  But that is obviously what

         24  the City Council would like to do in addition to

         25  service delivery.

                                                            42

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 There are couple of other questions.

          3  All right, in your example with your noise complaint

          4  that is a block or a couple of blocks related, that

          5  is the kind of data that you probably cannot

          6  generate now, but could generate under future years,

          7  in terms of that kind of specific data?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

          9  Yes, that was literally days of work for one person

         10  to make that happen.  And we now shortened it down

         11  where I can do that much faster.  And as we get the

         12  automated tools in place, that will be even faster.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.  And just

         14  following up on agency requests, in other words,

         15  right now if an agency wants to know what has been

         16  the follow- up, is the way in which you are going to

         17  do that kind of determination something that you are

         18  working on, or you could do it as Bill DeBlasio

         19  suggested, on a pilot basis, or is it just for the

         20  communities that we are talking about?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         22  Well the agencies can see what they have done with

         23  calls.  So if I am DOT, I look in the system and I

         24  see all of my calls, and I see what the status is

         25  with each one of those calls.  So DOT knows, you
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          2  know, if 90 percent of their calls have been marked

          3  complete, and there are 10 percent that are

          4  remaining open, 5 percent of those are in progress,

          5  5 are waiting, DOT knows that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, and that

          7  is on a monthly basis?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

          9  They know that live.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Live, okay.

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:  The

         12  agency knows that live.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Is that the kind

         14  of information that when you have your discussions

         15  with your Community Boards, I assume that will come

         16  up.  That is the kind of breakdown that the

         17  Community Boards are looking for.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

         19  Sure, they want to know - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  When they have

         21  the monthly District Service Cabinet meeting, or the

         22  monthly Board meeting that they can have a

         23  discussion that this is where our challenge is and

         24  for our planning, that is exactly what we are

         25  looking for.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

          3  That is right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.  Thank you

          5  very much to DOITT, I appreciate it.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER KNAFO:

          7  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Our next witness

          9  is Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.  Welcome, and we

         10  are ready to hear your wonderful discussion of 311.

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Thank you,

         12  and good afternoon.  And I would like to, first of

         13  all, compliment Council Member Brewer on her

         14  extremely important and timely effort on the

         15  analysis of 311, and also her introduction of the

         16  Bill 174- A, which I believe is a very positive step

         17  in the right direction.  So to you, Council Member

         18  Brewer, once again, we can congratulate you on all

         19  the good work that you do.

         20                 I am very pleased to co- sponsor

         21  Introduction 174- A, which requires the Bloomberg

         22  Administration to provide the Speaker of the

         23  Council, the Community Boards, and the Public

         24  Advocate's Office with electronic reports on service

         25  requests which are made to 311.
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          2                 The City Charter gives the Public

          3  Advocate the responsibility to monitor the operation

          4  of public information and service complaint

          5  programs, including the City's 311 Citizen Service

          6  Center.  To that end, I set out to gauge the impact

          7  of 311 on the City's ability to solve constituent

          8  problems.  My office surveyed the District Managers

          9  of the City's 59 Community Board Districts during

         10  the month of August.  The results confirm the need

         11  for the introduction of the Bill 174- A.

         12                 Of the 31 District Managers, out of

         13  the 59, who responded, of the 31, 79 percent believe

         14  that 311 needs improvement in general, 83 percent

         15  say that 311 operators need better knowledge of City

         16  agencies, and 34 percent say that 311 operators make

         17  inaccurate referrals.

         18                 The District Managers commend 311 for

         19  providing a round- the- clock service that Community

         20  Boards cannot.  But they say that the major

         21  limitation is that the information collection and

         22  referral service rather the complaint resolution

         23  service.  So the complaint that we got was that 311

         24  is a referral system, but does not resolve

         25  constituent complaints.  311 callers are referred to
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          2  City agency, but many callers are never informed how

          3  and if their problems have been resolved.

          4                 As a result, District Managers, as

          5  well as the ombudspeople in my office, frequently

          6  field complaints from constituents who do not get

          7  the help they need from 311.  I am sure it is the

          8  same of City Council District Offices.  According to

          9  the survey respondents, 87 percent of the calls they

         10  receive come from residents who are unsatisfied with

         11  311's response.  Seventy- four percent of callers

         12  contact them to find out whether a claim they have

         13  made to 311 has been resolved.

         14                 Let me just repeat those numbers,

         15  because I think they are important.  According to

         16  the survey that we did of the respondents, 87

         17  percent of the calls that they receive from their

         18  constituents are unsatisfied with 311's response.

         19  Seventy- four percent of the callers contact them to

         20  see whether or not the claim has ever been resolved.

         21

         22                 These numbers make it clear that the

         23  introduction of 311 has not made District Managers

         24  obsolete.  Unfortunately, it has limited their

         25  ability to do their jobs effectively.  The City does
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          2  not provide Community Boards with information about

          3  311 callers. Information that would enable them to

          4  track trends, advocate on behalf of their

          5  constituents in their Districts, and maximize the

          6  use of City resources to resolve those complaints.

          7                 Ninety- six percent of the District

          8  Managers say they need access to the 311 data, which

          9  is collected by 311, in order to serve their

         10  communities as well as they did before the

         11  introduction of 311.  Seventy- two percent say that

         12  the lack of this information makes it difficult to

         13  weigh in during the budget planning process and

         14  advocate for capital project funding in their

         15  districts. Perhaps most troubling is half of the

         16  District Managers say they have a reduced level of

         17  access to residents of City agencies, because they

         18  are told to call 311 instead.

         19                 These findings support the need for

         20  the City to adopt the reporting provisions required

         21  by Intro. No. 174- A, which calls for the City

         22  Department of Information Technology and

         23  Telecommunications to report when, where, and how

         24  often complaints are made, and how and if those

         25  complaints are resolved.  Without access to 311's
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          2  complaint database, or a special liaison to 311,

          3  neither Community Boards nor the Public Advocate's

          4  Office, and I assume the City Council also, can give

          5  constituents a status report on claims initiated

          6  with 311.  In many cases, we have no choice but to

          7  start at the beginning to resolve the problem,

          8  wasting City funds and delaying the solution to the

          9  caller.

         10                 While 311 has greatly increased the

         11  City's ability to receive citizens complaints, the

         12  system now needs to capitalize on this service and

         13  expertise of the City employees, 311 operators, City

         14  Agency Local Service Chiefs and District Managers,

         15  by integrating the services they provide and making

         16  them available to each other.  311 operators should

         17  be trained to better interface with the Community

         18  Board staff and to share their recommendations for

         19  complaint resolution.

         20                 There is no sensible reason why the

         21  Bloomberg Administration, which funds both 311 and

         22  the Community Boards, would not want these entities

         23  to work together and share information.  The

         24  proposed legislation is a common sense solution that

         25  we can all get behind.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          4  much, Madam Public Advocate.  Thank you for your

          5  support and for your, it is an official focus on

          6  ombudsmen, but it is a real commitment that goes

          7  beyond the official.  And so I thank you very much

          8  for making this a centerpiece because it does help

          9  us with the legislation, and I think helps us better

         10  plan and deliver the best possible services.

         11                 I will mention that, just a couple of

         12  points, was that in terms of the reduced level of

         13  access.  There were one or two meetings, not

         14  particularly well attended I think, because it was

         15  during the summer with DOITT and some Community

         16  Board representatives, based, I like to think the

         17  very best of Gino Menchini, and he did show up at

         18  these meetings, but it was partly because of these

         19  hearings, I think.  You know, having known, that one

         20  does, you know, prepare, and one way to prepare was

         21  to have these meetings.

         22                 And one of the issues that came out

         23  of it is the reduced level of access to

         24  representatives of City agencies.  So apparently

         25  that is something that is going to be addressed.
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          2  Although, it needs more discussion.

          3                 I think that the data, however, is

          4  absolute paramount to this whole discussion as your

          5  survey shows the lack there of.  Because when the

          6  Community Boards have their District Service

          7  Cabinets, it is often true that the reps at the

          8  agency level have some of this data, but the

          9  Community Boards do not.  So it is an uneven playing

         10  field to put it mildly.

         11                 So you have so many points here that

         12  we have been making, and it is very nice to have the

         13  data that backs that up.

         14                 One question I have is that Bill

         15  DeBlasio, before he left, and we have now been

         16  joined by Tish James who represents Brooklyn, and a

         17  member of this Committee, and I am delighted she is

         18  here.  But one of the questions that comes up

         19  constantly is the inability to know if one's problem

         20  is resolved.  And Bill DeBlasio pointed out that as

         21  elected officials, and I know as Community Board

         22  staff there is a paramount concern of getting back

         23  to the person who complained.  And as yet, that has

         24  not been done by DOITT, they suggested that maybe

         25  they will start on a pilot basis using email, which
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          2  of course does not enable everybody to know the

          3  outcome, because not everybody has access.

          4                 But in your survey, did you find that

          5  people who called were waiting to get called back

          6  and did not?  Were they given the impression that

          7  they would get a call back, or are they just

          8  thinking that the follow- up would be something that

          9  they have to do on their own?  What was the kind of

         10  feeling about the follow up?

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: First of

         12  all, in this particular survey we just talked to the

         13  District Managers, we did not talk to constituents.

         14  But I can say somewhat, with some humor, that we are

         15  always thrilled, and Elizabeth Blaney, who runs my

         16  Ombudsmen Office is here, we are always thrilled

         17  when constituents call us and say we have not heard

         18  back from 311, will you help us. So, we do get quite

         19  a number of those calls, I do not have the total

         20  number.  It is not overwhelming, I mean, especially

         21  since 311 gets I think 25,000 calls a day, or

         22  something, is what we have been told.  But we did

         23  not survey constituents.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.  And the

         25  other question is the information earlier indicated
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          2  from DOITT that the operators, this did not come up,

          3  the operators making inaccurate referrals. So I

          4  guess that is something that, because Community

          5  Boards really do know where to make accurate

          6  referrals, that this would be something that they

          7  were very conscious of.

          8                 Could you just a talk a little bit

          9  more about that, because that is a very basic part

         10  of City government?

         11                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Yes, we got

         12  from the District Managers that often 311 would call

         13  them and ask them the accurate information about

         14  City agencies.  In fact, 83 percent of the District

         15  Managers indicated that the operators at 311 did not

         16  know where to call.  So that was something, and that

         17  they also requested, they also said they felt the

         18  operators need better training.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Tish, do you

         20  have a question? No.  Okay, one last question is,

         21  what other topic that came up today was just trying

         22  to figure out the system in which Community Boards,

         23  in particular, or elected officials would be told

         24  about an outcome.  And do you have any suggestions

         25  as to how that would take place?  Bill DeBlasio
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          2  suggested even on a pilot basis to start with a

          3  particular topic like potholes or street lights and

          4  try to get back to the constituents in this case,

          5  but also Community Boards, it seems to me, could

          6  play a role.  Because we know our communities,

          7  speaking in the sense of neighborhood leaders.  But

          8  how one gets back, it is a question of staffing, and

          9  to be able to call every single person and state

         10  that your problem has or has not been resolved for

         11  the following, is a major staff challenge.

         12                 So I just did not know if in your

         13  survey you had any discussion about how people could

         14  be responded to?

         15                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  I do not

         16  think specifically again, that we asked the District

         17  Managers how to better do that.  I mean, I think

         18  they feel the same way we all do, it is the contact

         19  of calling people back, the human voice calling back

         20  and saying, this has been resolved in this way.  It

         21  is extremely satisfying to people when that happens.

         22    As indeed, it is very satisfying to people when

         23  people answer the phone and actually try to help

         24  them.  So I mean, that is something we all know from

         25  running these kinds of constituent services.
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          2                 My feeling is, and I think we all

          3  agree with this, the more we can share information

          4  with each other, the better off the City is going to

          5  be and our constituents are going to be.  So

          6  therefore, if the City has data about whether it is

          7  potholes or something in your district that is

          8  happening, and you could almost do it by district,

          9  by Councilmanic District and let them share what 311

         10  shows you about that Councilmanic District.  I

         11  maintain that everybody, every Council person that I

         12  know, would want to know that, would want to have

         13  that information and get their staff working on

         14  trying to respond.

         15                 Now the calls may be in the West

         16  Side, particularly, Gale, based on what you said

         17  earlier, so great that you cannot do it in a

         18  district like yours.  But perhaps in a district that

         19  gets fewer 311 calls, perhaps that would be a good

         20  place to start the model.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, all

         22  right.  Thank you very much.  I appreciate it very

         23  much.

         24                 Our next panel is Mannix Gordon,

         25  Annamaria Jones, and Penny Ryan, to start, And we
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          2  can also include Susan Stetzer. A So we will do a

          3  panel of four.  Sure, absolutely, so Board 3 should

          4  go first.  We will have Penny in the next panel.

          5  Anything Penny Ryan says is fine with me.  Go ahead,

          6  who would like to start? Introduce yourself and

          7  start.

          8                 MR. GORDON:  Hello.  Good afternoon,

          9  my name is Mannix Gordon.  I am a resident of

         10  Brooklyn who has satisfactorily used the 311 call

         11  system to complain about axle breaking potholes

         12  outside my home in East Flatbush.  I am also the

         13  Director of Information Technology and a Senior

         14  Planner, and Assistant Professor at Pratt Institute.

         15    The Pratt Institute Center for Community and

         16  Environmental Development, also known as PICCED.

         17  PICCED is the oldest university- based advocacy and

         18  community planning center in the United States.

         19  PICCED supports the efforts of low- and moderate-

         20  income communities to combat poverty and inequality

         21  through sustainable development.

         22                 I would like to start by thanking the

         23  Chair, Council Member Brewer, and the Committee

         24  members that are sponsoring this hearing for the

         25  opportunity to address you on this important issue.
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          2                 At PICCED, we strongly believe that

          3  high- quality, time- sensitive, readily accessible

          4  information is essential in efforts to foster

          5  stronger neighborhoods.  In all of our community

          6  planning and development efforts we use geographic

          7  information systems to enable communities to utilize

          8  available data in order to plan and create their

          9  future.  Communities need the best and most accurate

         10  information, and the technical assistance to

         11  interpret and analyze it, at their disposal for

         12  decision making.

         13                 We have seen this in the

         14  comprehensive 197- a community planning work that we

         15  have done with Community Boards 1 and 3 in Brooklyn,

         16  and Community Board 9 in Manhattan.  In those

         17  neighborhoods thousands of residents have come

         18  together to review and interpret data, combine this

         19  analysis with their aspirations for the community

         20  that they live in, and develop a plan that will

         21  shape the neighborhood's future.  This is also true

         22  in smaller community efforts to create a new child

         23  care center, to redevelop an abandoned block, or to

         24  bring new senior services to the area, or address

         25  unfair concentrations of environmental harms.
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          2                 But these community planning efforts

          3  are only as good as the information that is

          4  available.  Communities should therefore be given

          5  the tools necessary to better make educated

          6  decisions.  New York's communities should have

          7  unburdened access to the public information that

          8  affects their own neighborhood environment the most.

          9                 The 311 system now provides a rich

         10  trove of data on our neighborhoods, based on the

         11  input, feedback, questions, and complaints from

         12  millions of New Yorkers.  We applaud the 311 system

         13  in general, and give great credit to DOITT for the

         14  enormous task of streamlining the myriad City

         15  Departments' datasets and reporting.

         16                 We are concerned, however, about the

         17  lack of access to this valuable data.  It is based

         18  on the feelings of New Yorkers, and essential to

         19  future planning for our communities.  We believe it

         20  is truly our data.

         21                 PICCED therefore strongly supports

         22  Proposed Introduction No. 174- A.  I would enable

         23  communities to keep track of what is going on in

         24  their neighborhoods, have a better handle on the

         25  most important issues, and be meaningful to
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          2  participants with government in building strong

          3  communities.  It would also help alleviate community

          4  concerns of a return to top- down planning and fears

          5  of potential government neglect, if 311 data is used

          6  only by governing agencies.

          7                 We believe that Community Boards are

          8  a valuable way to provide access to the data.  They

          9  are designed as the bridge between the community

         10  residents and the complexities of government. They

         11  are the vehicle that residents used both to stay

         12  informed about government plans and actions, and to

         13  become proactive in solving community problems.

         14  Without the 311 data, this bridge will be severely

         15  weakened since citizens will know that their own

         16  institutions do not have the data that is driving

         17  the real decisions.  Confidence in government will

         18  be undermined, and local participation diminished.

         19  With the 311 data, however, Community Boards become

         20  even more valuable in building a meaningful

         21  partnership between citizens and City's government.

         22                 Community Boards could work with

         23  watchdogs, academic think- tanks, and community-

         24  based groups to track and correlate NYC Fair Share

         25  legislation compliance better.  Environmental
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          2  justice groups could provide better analysis with

          3  the additional layers of New York City information.

          4  They could overlay information to the fully

          5  accessible US EPA datasets that are on- line at the

          6  micro point data level.  The EPA web site can serve

          7  as a good model for dissemination and transparency

          8  in government data, and I give the web site,

          9  http://epa.gov.

         10                 If I had my way, we would take it

         11  even further to include full public access.  Some of

         12  the data would be disseminated through the

         13  government portal, NYC.gov, to include electronic

         14  and even paper reporting services for everyone who

         15  wanted to study or assess the impacts of 311

         16  reporting.  There are solutions that would allow the

         17  publication of data at a micro- level, which still

         18  ensuring privacy and security.

         19                 The Council's actions over the past

         20  three years, this Committee on Technology in

         21  Government in particular, including the various

         22  reports on the importance of technology, grassroots

         23  participation, public access to data and decision

         24  making, reflect a sound approach to public policy.

         25  We hope that this commitment will continue and even
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          2  be expanded to include resources to address the

          3  needs of low- income persons who do not have access

          4  to the Internet or mapping systems of their own.

          5                 This proposal serves to strengthen

          6  Community Boards's toolbox, and in kind, addresses

          7  those still on the other side of the digital divide.

          8    It does not create too great a burden on DOITT,

          9  and the benefits will far outweigh the modest cost.

         10  It will help to increase public confidence,

         11  strengthen local participation in government, and

         12  enable New Yorkers to play a deeper role in building

         13  stronger communities.  This is a step in the right

         14  direction.

         15                 Thank you again for this hearing and

         16  the opportunity to speak to you on this important

         17  issue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         19  much.  Susan, go ahead, and if you want to summarize

         20  any part of your testimony, feel free.

         21                 MS. STETZER:  Okay, I actually left

         22  out things.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Good.

         24                 MS. STETZER:  Thank you for this

         25  opportunity to testify for Intro. 174- A.  My name
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          2  is Susan Stetzer, and I am District Manager for

          3  Community Board #3 in Manhattan, which covers the

          4  East Village, Lower East Side, and Chinatown.

          5                 As you know, Community Boards are

          6  responsible for handling service complaints from the

          7  community, as well as making recommendations for

          8  agency activities, budgets, and future agency

          9  programs.  Community Boards need information from

         10  311 to be able to perform these functions.

         11                 Previously, Community Boards received

         12  complaints from residents, worked with City agencies

         13  to resolve them.  This procedure allowed the Board

         14  to be aware of problems in the district, and they

         15  gained experience with working with agencies and

         16  developed relationships that gave them the means to

         17  improve service delivery issues.  Boards use this

         18  information to resolve issues and to plan

         19  proactively.

         20                 The establishment of 311 immediately

         21  relieved Boards of much of the more routine problems

         22  reported to 311, and 311 seems to work well with

         23  clear cut problems that have clear solutions.

         24                 Follow- up on complaints is a big

         25  issue for Community Boards.  We get complaint
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          2  numbers from 311, but when we follow- up we are

          3  often told that a complaint is closed or resolved.

          4  Does this mean that a violation was issued, was the

          5  problem fixed, was it transmitted to another agency

          6  that is now working on it, what information do we

          7  give to residents who are calling us for answers?

          8                 The Community Boards also needs

          9  information to make appropriate recommendations.  We

         10  must give recommendations to approve or deny the

         11  renewal of liquor licenses and sidewalk cafes, but

         12  we do not have access to necessary 311 information

         13  regarding history of complaints.  We make

         14  recommendations to approve new sidewalk cafes, but

         15  it is not responsible to make these recommendations

         16  without complete history of the complaints for the

         17  establishment.  Similarly, we need to approve

         18  permits for block parties, street fairs, and special

         19  events, but again do not have access to history.

         20                 We are responsible for initial review

         21  and recommendations regarding land use development

         22  and improvement of land located in the district.  We

         23  cannot exercise this function responsibly without

         24  all available information to identify needs and

         25  problems.
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          2                 The Boards also make recommendations

          3  for allocation of resources for their districts.

          4  They consider needs of the district, consult, assist

          5  agencies in preparing plans for growth, improvement,

          6  and development of districts.  We write annual

          7  statements of community district needs and

          8  recommendations for programs, projects, and consult

          9  with agencies on needs of the community districts

         10  that should be funded.  We are asked to prioritize

         11  capital expense needs for the district.  This all

         12  requires evaluation of quality and quantity of

         13  services provided by agencies.  Information captured

         14  by 311 is necessary to make all of these

         15  recommendations.

         16                 And I just want to mention the

         17  reports that we are going to be getting from 311 are

         18  going to be really helpful for one aspect, they will

         19  allow us to follow- up on complaints we have made.

         20  They will not help us in having a picture of the

         21  district for a recommendation or evaluation.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Next.

         25                 MS. JONES:  Hi, good afternoon.  My
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          2  name is Annamaria Jones, and I am the Community

          3  Affairs Manager at New Yorkers for Parks.  And New

          4  Yorkers for Parks is the only citywide parks

          5  advocacy organization that serves as the watchdog

          6  for the Department of Parks and Recreation, 1,700

          7  properties of park land, citywide.

          8                 I am here today to testify in support

          9  of Intro. No. 174- A requiring periodic, public

         10  reports and web access to the number of complaints

         11  made to the Citizens Service Center through 311.

         12                 Reporting of 311 information would

         13  serve as a vital tracking method to all New Yorkers,

         14  especially park users.  This tracking system would

         15  enable Community Boards, the City Council,

         16  volunteers and all park advocates to learn of local

         17  parks complaints and inquiries in their neighborhood

         18  parks.

         19                 New Yorkers for Parks believes that

         20  raising the awareness and transparency of park

         21  issues will improve this vital, public service.

         22  Intro. 174- A strengthens our advocacy efforts and

         23  can enhance the City's ability to provide top

         24  quality park services to all New Yorkers.  We urge

         25  the Council to pass Intro. 174- A and look forward
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          2  to a month- by- month report by the Department of

          3  Information Technology and Telecommunications on all

          4  data collected from through the 311 hotline.

          5                 Thank you for your time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

          7  much.  Mannix, I have a quick, I know you are a GIS,

          8  Geographic Information System maven, and I know that

          9  I have seen your wonderful maps.  Do you, when you

         10  work now on some of the 197- a plans, do you have

         11  any access, how do you determine the data, you

         12  obviously have City Planning, you have the

         13  Department of Finance, you have other City sources,

         14  but how do you work with the data locally, in other

         15  words, when you are doing your planning?

         16                 MR. GORDON:  Well, I mean, we use

         17  micro data a lot, I mean, as much as possible.

         18  Which is saying micro data is like point or

         19  addressed based information.  Or if it by lot or the

         20  tax lot, we, you know, if it is coming from the

         21  Department of Finance, we will use it that way.

         22                 We currently do not have access to

         23  311 data in our planning efforts with these

         24  different groups, and the Community Boards, no.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  How would that
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          2  assist you, how would the data assist you?

          3                 MR. GORDON:  Oh, tremendously.  I

          4  mean, it would put the issues right on the table.  I

          5  mean, when we have, we host planning meetings with

          6  the Community Board members and also the different

          7  committees that are putting together these community

          8  plans, if they were able to see mapped out locations

          9  of where the complaints are coming from, where the

         10  resolutions have been made, then a lot of that would

         11  correlate with the data that we have on social

         12  services, and on the land uses, and zoning

         13  proposals, and the like.  So, I mean, that would

         14  help tremendously, and the whole information

         15  brainstorming process even at the beginning of the

         16  process, sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay, thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 MS. JONES:  I would like to add to

         20  that, it was really great that you brought that up,

         21  because currently there is no tracking method for

         22  crime in parks, and that would serve as a great tool

         23  through GIS and could be implemented into the

         24  ComStat. And you know, it would be some sort of

         25  tracking method for crime in parks, and other issues
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          2  in parks.

          3                 MR. GORDON:  Yes, one of the things

          4  that I was, when DOITT was here and they were

          5  talking about the privacy level, one of the things

          6  that occurred to me, you know, being a GIS person is

          7  that you can take the addresses out, you can take

          8  the addresses out and use a X- Y coordinate, or a

          9  longitude, latitude, and then be able to map it that

         10  way.  Therefore, it secures accuracy, and also

         11  privacy, where the person does not have to show what

         12  the address is.  So it could be correlated down to

         13  the point level, and then it can be aggregated up

         14  to, you know, census track, zip codes, Councilmanic

         15  Districts, Community districts, or whatever.  At the

         16  point that it is now, borough and New York City

         17  level, I mean it is pretty impossible for someone to

         18  make any kind of neighborhood level analysis based

         19  on that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  All right, thank

         21  you very much. The next panel, Penny Ryan, Robert

         22  Perris, Anthony Borelli, Pamela North, that is our

         23  last panel.  Anybody else wants to sign up, please

         24  do so, thank you.  Who would like to begin?  Why

         25  doesn't the woman to my left, begin, why don't you
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          2  start?  Pamela.

          3                 MS. NORTH:  Good afternoon.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Good afternoon.

          5                 MS. NORTH:  And thank you very much,

          6  Honorable Gale Brewer and all Council persons for

          7  inviting Community Board #12, Manhattan to provide

          8  you with comments and our statement of support in

          9  favor of 174- A.  My name is Pam Palanki North, I am

         10  First Vice Chair of Community Board 12 Manhattan,

         11  and I am also a Professor with American University

         12  Graduate School of Public Affairs, but a resident of

         13  West 162nd Street, a commuting resident.

         14                 I would like to read a statement

         15  today, unfortunately, I cannot provide the statement

         16  to the Board yet, because it is, in fact, the

         17  Executive Committee's pending resolution, which will

         18  be provided to 50 Board members on the 28th of

         19  September, which I am sure we will get unanimous,

         20  but I shall read it, which gives you a statement of

         21  our support of this bill.

         22                 The City's 311 system has helped make

         23  local government more accessible to the people of

         24  New York.  It has generated cost savings to improve

         25  allocation of personnel and resources, and it
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          2  certainly has enhanced government efficiency through

          3  greater computerization.

          4                 The City does not currently publish

          5  311's call data broken down by Community District,

          6  and provides no direct reporting to the Community

          7  Boards.  This is a problem for the Community Board.

          8                 It certainly hampers our ability to

          9  plan for years forward for providing both comments

         10  on capital and expense items that are submitted

         11  annually in the budget.  We, in fact, must plan for

         12  270,000 residents who start at 155th Street and go

         13  up to 218th Street, river to river, and certainly

         14  have a number of calls that they place for each City

         15  agency, but we are without the data, in fact, we are

         16  somewhat blinded on making final decisions.

         17                 Data on complaints related to the

         18  provision of government services and quality of life

         19  in general are vital to Community Boards in our role

         20  in advocating for district- wide interest,

         21  communicating with City agencies in preparing

         22  mandated annual statements of district needs and

         23  budget priorities, as I have just said.

         24                 Community Board #12 supports City

         25  Council Intro. 174- A, and is very much looking
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          2  forward to DOITT being able to release 311 reports

          3  with detailed data for each Community Board on a

          4  monthly basis.

          5                 I thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

          7  Anthony.

          8                 MR. BORELLI:  Hi, good afternoon.  My

          9  name is Anthony Borelli.  I am the District Manager

         10  of Manhattan Community Board #4, which covers the

         11  West Side neighborhoods of Chelsea and Hells

         12  Kitchen.

         13                 Thank you, Chair Brewer, Council

         14  Member James, for the opportunity this afternoon to

         15  express to you my views on the 311 system and

         16  information sharing.

         17                 As I did earlier this year, at two

         18  previous oversight hearings, I will first state that

         19  I think 311 is an important initiative, and I am

         20  really anxious for it to succeed. I also fully

         21  support Intro. 174- A.

         22                 311 makes government more accessible

         23  and represents a valuable planning and management

         24  tool.  Like it does for other agencies and for City

         25  Hall, it has the potential to help make Community
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          2  Boards more efficient, more effective, and a more

          3  helpful resource.  But unless Community Boards the

          4  ability to tap into the full capacity of 311, the

          5  Call Center actually undermines the role of

          6  Community Boards as described by the Charter.

          7                 I am not just talking about enabling

          8  Community Boards to write better district need

          9  statements, or about fostering intelligent community

         10  responses to the budget, or about having more

         11  productive District Service Cabinet meetings.

         12  Sharing information will certainly improve those

         13  aspects of Community Boards' responsibilities.

         14                 In previous testimony I covered these

         15  points and I explained how 311 has actually syphoned

         16  from Community Boards information that is crucial to

         17  the Boards' thinking, decision making, and planning.

         18    We now simply have less information to carry out

         19  our Charter mandated responsibilities.  And it is

         20  more difficult for us to be proactive in addressing

         21  local needs, understanding and addressing them.

         22                 Now I also want to add that there is

         23  a systemic need for data sharing in the way that the

         24  City conducts business.

         25                 In addition to the many
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          2  responsibilities explicitly mandated in the Charter,

          3  Community Boards play an essential role in the

          4  licensing and permitting procedures of other

          5  government agencies.  In addition to the review of

          6  land use applications and other proposals required

          7  by ULURP, Community Boards are notified and

          8  consulted on a number of items by various City

          9  agencies.  The Art Commission asks us about street

         10  furniture, DOITT asks us about public payphones, the

         11  Mayor's Office of Street Activity Permits asks us

         12  about street closings, DOITT asks us about all sorts

         13  of revokable consents, and every now and then I hear

         14  from HPD looking for our opinion on various types of

         15  applications that they review.

         16                 Demands for our opinion, however, are

         17  most high when it comes to applications for City

         18  issued licenses for cabarets and sidewalk cafes, and

         19  for state issued liquor licenses.  On average,

         20  Community Board #4 reviews 30 to 40 liquor licenses

         21  per month.  DCA sends more cabaret license

         22  applications to us than to any other district, I

         23  think.  And since implementation of new licensing

         24  procedures, which have resulted in a stronger role

         25  for Community Boards, the number of outside cafes on
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          2  our sidewalks is higher than it ever has been, and

          3  the number is increasing.

          4                 Community Board review is integral to

          5  these licensing processes, especially with respect

          6  to license renewals. The system relies on our

          7  interpretation of local conditions, and it is an

          8  appropriate responsibility for Community Boards to

          9  have.  But it is this stage of the licensing process

         10  where the system is threatened by breakdown.  What

         11  is the point of basing a licensing decision on a

         12  Community Boards' opinion on how a business has

         13  behaved, if the Board has little or no information

         14  to make intelligent recommendations.  It undermines

         15  the system in this way. The system depends on a

         16  recommendation that is informed by the local

         17  community.  Without the information that 311

         18  collects, our files are empty.

         19                 We get an application for a liquor

         20  license, a sidewalk cafe, something else, we go to

         21  our files, they are organized by address, there is

         22  nothing in there.  We have no way to support or

         23  oppose an application because we just do not have

         24  the information.

         25                 So while DOITT has successfully
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          2  implemented the technical changes needed to create a

          3  truly, remarkable centralized call center, it is

          4  important for the City to recognize and address its

          5  ripple effects.  And I just have explained some of

          6  them.

          7                 I applaud Chair Brewer for holding

          8  this hearing.  I thank her and her staff again, this

          9  legislation certainly shows that you have been

         10  listening to us.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you.

         13  Penny.

         14                 MS. RYAN:  Good afternoon.  Thank

         15  you, Gale, for holding this hearing, and I, on

         16  behalf of the Upper West Side want to thank you and

         17  your entire Committee, as Anthony has said, for

         18  hearing our concerns and drafting legislation that

         19  I think is clear and effective, and also doable by

         20  DOITT, if they will just do it.  Sorry, about that,

         21  I did not mean to do it that way.

         22                 Just on their comments, I find that

         23  they keep going back to this privacy issue, and in

         24  looking at the different kind of data that is

         25  available and our needs, I think that that can
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          2  certainly be resolved, and I am sure that the

          3  Committee will not let that be a stumbling block on

          4  having the legislation move forward.

          5                 And I thought the Deputy

          6  Commissioner's example, as Council member asked him

          7  a question about it, of noise on his block, and how

          8  he was able to map this, and solve the problem, was

          9  just an example of exactly what we are looking for.

         10                 You have my testimony, I am just

         11  going to go through one section here, you have asked

         12  if we could summarize a little bit.  And that is the

         13  middle section which is information by district that

         14  is in the Proposed Intro., which I certainly

         15  support, and I expect our full Board to support

         16  wholeheartedly on October the 5th.

         17                 The information by district, which

         18  includes problem location, category, agency, and

         19  status will give Community Boards the data they need

         20  for planning, monitoring, and coordination of

         21  services.  And I think this is important the

         22  utilization of new technology, such as geographic

         23  information systems.  As a matter of fact, I think

         24  if this data were available that more Boards would

         25  move towards GIS systems, which are going to be

                                                            76

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  very, very helpful for their communities.  And I

          3  also feel that having the data for the district

          4  level would increase public participation, because

          5  we could show people what is happening in different

          6  parts of the district in their neighborhood.  And I

          7  think they would really welcome that.

          8                 I would like to cite two examples:

          9                 In August of FY 2005, that is just

         10  the past month, according to the 311 report, which

         11  is on- line at NYC.gov, 780,000 calls came into the

         12  Citizens Service Center.  Of these 436,000, that is

         13  56 percent, were request for services.  Now if you

         14  just do the math, on average there were 7,400 calls

         15  from each district, just dividing by the number

         16  districts, that translates into 89,000 complaints

         17  per district per year.  Now if we had that

         18  information, and I am sure it is even more by

         19  Council district, won't it be powerful.  Do you know

         20  what it would mean, even to the neighborhood to just

         21  see their neighborhood on a GIS map with that kind

         22  of data? So, to me, that makes it very compelling

         23  that they really have to share this data.

         24                 And this is not the request for a

         25  brochure, or information, or how does the train run,
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          2  or anything, these are the actual requests for

          3  services.  So I think this data provides

          4  unprecedented opportunities for Community Boards and

          5  their communities to analyze problems and effect

          6  change at the local level.

          7                 And again, I think that this kind of

          8  work at the local level would only complement what

          9  the Mayor's Management Report and others are trying

         10  to do.  So I hope that DOITT does not see this as a

         11  competition, because I think it is just a whole

         12  different application of this data.

         13                 The second example is rodent

         14  complaints is one of the seven categories 311

         15  presents in my neighborhood characteristics.  In

         16  July and August of this fiscal year, from our

         17  district, residents made 108 rodent complaints to

         18  311.  Now again, projecting this out, that comes to

         19  648 complaints for the year.

         20                 From our own data that we are working

         21  on right now, we have identified three major

         22  infestations of rodents in our district that we have

         23  never had before, including rodents sitting on

         24  window sills trying to get into windows.  So we are

         25  very concerned about this.  And if we had that data
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          2  from them, from DOITT to go with our data, we could

          3  really make sure that we have covered all of the

          4  areas that are problematic.  And also, I think this

          5  goes to this getting back to the neighborhood,

          6  because we could by neighborhood, which is what we

          7  are doing now in trying to address the problem with

          8  the Department of Health's help, we could go back to

          9  the neighborhood with a response of here is what we

         10  are doing.  For example, work on 80th to 90th Street

         11  near the park, as is Council Member Brewer, and we

         12  can get back to that whole community, as well as to

         13  individuals in terms of responses.

         14                 Now, and interestingly enough, the

         15  October 2003 Department of Health Rodent Task Force

         16  report to the Mayor, recommends such collaborative

         17  effort and includes Community Boards in that

         18  collaboration.  So there is precedent for that.

         19                 Another point that I think is

         20  important it is for the legislation, on average, 12

         21  percent of the 311 calls are referred to as requests

         22  for service, which is how the legislation states

         23  this right now, which are entered in the 311

         24  database. There is another 44 percent of the calls

         25  that are agency transfer or referrals that DOITT has
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          2  referred to, you know, as being transferred to

          3  another agency, or a phone number is given to the

          4  caller, you know, to call the MPA, for example.

          5  Both of these categories are the highest priority to

          6  us, not just the service requests that go into 311,

          7  although those will be more accessible through the

          8  Seeble (phonetic) system and Legacy systems, which

          9  the agency said, obviously. Would be harder.  But we

         10  hope you that you will include both in the

         11  legislation, so that it would be requests for

         12  services and agency transfers.

         13                 On Community Boards' meeting with

         14  DOITT, we were very happy, I guess, in anticipation

         15  of this meeting, as you said, that DOITT met with

         16  several District Managers and Community Board

         17  representatives.  This was on Friday at three

         18  o'clock in August, with not much notice.  So, but we

         19  were happy to have the conversation.  So if the

         20  Committee could encourage them to schedule regularly

         21  scheduled meetings that we could follow- up with,

         22  and if the Committee could join us, that would be

         23  wonderful.

         24                 And we have also asked them to make

         25  sure that a summary, Anthony Borelli had asked, that
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          2  a summary of the meeting in his conclusions go out

          3  to every Community Board, and I think that is

          4  critical in order to get other, get Community

          5  Boards, and Council members for that matter, aware

          6  of this whole issue and in our requests, and so we

          7  can all work together on it.

          8                 So, again, thank you for the

          9  opportunity to comment. With my testimony, also, I

         10  just did include a little chart from the web site

         11  that shows the percentage of the calls and how

         12  DOITT, how 311 classifies them, just for your

         13  reference.  Okay?

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very,

         16  very much. Robert.

         17                 MR. PERRIS:  Good afternoon.  My name

         18  is Robert Perris, and I am District Manager of

         19  Brooklyn Community Board #2. And I want to thank

         20  you, Madam Chairperson, for the opportunity to

         21  testify, and for your leadership on what we feel is

         22  a very crucial issue.  And I am very pleased to see

         23  that Council Member James is able to join us today.

         24  Council Member James represents 60 percent of

         25  Community District 2.
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          2                 I am going to keep my comments very

          3  brief and very general, and I do so for three

          4  reasons:

          5                 1.  For myself and the Board, and

          6  many others, this legislation is such common sense

          7  that it almost defies further testimony.

          8                 2.  My colleagues in City government

          9  and in the not for- profit sector bring up the same

         10  issues over and over again, and it is redundant for

         11  me to do so.  The fact that the same issues come up

         12  over and over again, I think, just re- enforces how

         13  much common sense is really involved here.

         14                 3.  I am cautiously optimistic by the

         15  things that DOITT says to the District Managers.

         16  And they said them again today, they, at least,

         17  state an interest in sharing information. And I am

         18  optimistic that they are genuine when they make that

         19  statement.

         20                 I have a data processing background,

         21  I would be dumbfounded that they would not be able

         22  to provide the information that is sort by Council

         23  members, Community Boards, and others.  It is just a

         24  matter of doing the work.

         25                 And I am also sympathetic to the fact

                                                            82

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  that they are phasing a very large system, and it is

          3  unfortunate that Community Boards were not included

          4  in the very first phase, although, perhaps somewhat

          5  understandable given the size of the venture.  But I

          6  wanted to be here today to express Community Board

          7  2's support for Intro. 174- A, which I think may

          8  hasten the day that they provide the Community

          9  Boards with that information.  And not just on the

         10  Community District basis, but I think that the

         11  information can even be provided on a neighborhood

         12  basis and be that much more functional.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         15  much.  One quick question is, I know that there was

         16  some discussion about follow- up and how the agency,

         17  311 and DOITT could provide that.  But it does seem

         18  to me that your input would be good here.  There was

         19  some discussion about giving individuals who call

         20  information via the web.  I guess my feeling is that

         21  some of these should be decided by you meeting with,

         22  as an Advisory Board to DOITT, as to how this

         23  information, because obviously it coming to you

         24  would be another way of getting the data out on a

         25  neighborhood basis.  If you know that there are 30
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          2  people calling 311 about a rodent complaint in a

          3  certain area, you are better than anybody else, you

          4  know, generic, you, the community, to tell the

          5  people who are complaining that this is what is

          6  being done about it.

          7                 So how do you think we could, in

          8  fact, do some of this follow- up effectively, that

          9  both serves your needs in terms of getting the data,

         10  but also serves the needs of those who are

         11  complaining as your constituents and your residents?

         12                 MS. RYAN:  I think there are

         13  different scales in all of this.  If you use the

         14  rodent example, the community is part of the

         15  solution on that.  So it is not even a matter of

         16  reporting, it is reporting back to them what

         17  everybody is doing, but it is also bringing them

         18  together with the agencies.  And I think that is

         19  what the Boards do the best, quite honestly, is you

         20  know bringing them together so that they understand

         21  ongoing what we are all doing, and are part of the

         22  solution.

         23                 Personally, I felt that when it is a

         24  specific problem like a traffic light, a street

         25  light, a pothole, that stuff has to get done, unless
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          2  there are a whole bunch of potholes and there is

          3  something wrong with the street.  So that I think

          4  there could be, just, you know, certain complaints

          5  that one assumes are going to get done.  But again,

          6  in this advisory capacity we can work with them on

          7  what complaints that we really need to know where

          8  the referral went to, if it went some place and what

          9  the resolution of it is.  And how we could be part

         10  of the solution to that problem, because more of the

         11  complex things, you know, we need somebody at the

         12  local level, I think, to coordinate what is going

         13  on.

         14                 MR. BORELLI:  The only thing that I

         15  have to add to that is we have talked about

         16  reporting in this matter at some of the meetings we

         17  have had with DOITT.  Unfortunately, when you ask

         18  them about the types of issues that were raised at

         19  these meetings, they mentioned two.  There are, at

         20  least, a dozen, two dozen, 36, at least.  And they

         21  mentioned two easy ones that they could respond to,

         22  in fact, those were two that were raised last year,

         23  two years ago.

         24                 We talk a lot about reporting.  We

         25  talk about the need for detailed information.  The
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          2  fact that aggregated data is of limited use.  The

          3  fact that we can help follow- up on certain

          4  concerns.  That they need to make it easier for us

          5  to help track issues or complaints that callers call

          6  in.  They do not have the time, they are private

          7  citizens, we actually get paid, at least, in part to

          8  do this sort of thing, we should be enabled to do

          9  that.  We should be allowed to follow- up on service

         10  requests.

         11                 We also have made a suggestion,

         12  actually it was Penny's suggestion a few hearings

         13  ago, that we ask the caller if it is okay to share

         14  the information with us.  I think that is a pretty

         15  straightforward question, it would take care of some

         16  of the privacy issues.  I still do not think we need

         17  to know about everybody's personal history, but at

         18  least for some basic information, that seems to be a

         19  common sense issue to explore.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Okay.  Thank you

         21  very much. For those who want to submit testimony,

         22  it would go to Jeffrey Haberman, who is the Counsel,

         23  and it is 212- 788- 9168, or you can email it to

         24  Jeffrey.Haberman@Council.nyc.ny.us.  Thank you all

         25  very, very much, and for your ongoing support.  I
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          2  appreciate it very much.

          3                 Finally, Diana Schneider.  Diana, go

          4  ahead.

          5                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  Chairwoman Brewer, I

          6  am thrilled to be able to testify today.  I just

          7  found out about this meeting when I was over at a

          8  member of your staff told us about the Helicopter

          9  Task Force meeting, that this was coming up, and I

         10  knew that this was germane to some of the issues

         11  with which I have been working on.

         12                 For those of you who do not know me,

         13  my name is Diana Schneider.  I am public member of

         14  Community Board #7.  I am also one of the, probably

         15  almost a founding member of the Manhattan Helicopter

         16  Task Force, and I am working right now with the FAA,

         17  Port Authority, Manhattan Borough President's

         18  Office, to deal with the situation of unnecessary

         19  helicopter fly overs.  And to mitigate or eliminate

         20  unnecessary helicopter fly overs and restrict it,

         21  hopefully, one day to only emergency helicopters in

         22  New York City.

         23                 I appreciate the Intro. 174- A, I

         24  think it is a really good step.  I, myself, have

         25  called 311 regarding both the issue of helicopter
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          2  and the jet situation.  And been told to either call

          3  my local precinct, or to call a Department at the

          4  FAA who actually does nothing, because I happen to

          5  know the person, personally, and what the office

          6  does, and does not even tally the response.

          7                 311, I believe, does not have a

          8  coordinated response as to how to deal with this.  I

          9  was told that neither helicopter fly overs or jet

         10  plane traffic was tabulated as a complaint,

         11  although, the number one reason people are leaving

         12  New York City is absolutely, positively noise.  And

         13  if you attend Community Board 7's hearings, as I do

         14  often, helicopters are one of the main reasons that

         15  people are livid about the lack of respect.

         16                 The City Noise Code does deal with

         17  aircraft noise, has since I believe 1972.  What I

         18  believe we need to do, also, what is happening right

         19  now, I do not know if the members in this room know

         20  it, possibly Councilwoman Brewer does, the FAA is

         21  now redesigning the entire air space of the United

         22  States.  They are beginning with the northeast.  I

         23  was told by the redesign manager, Mr. Kelly, at a

         24  meeting of the Manhattan Borough President's

         25  Helicopter Task Force.  He showed me and a member of
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          2  Community Board 7 how the aircraft traffic could be

          3  rerouted off the West Side very easily to water and

          4  industrial routes.  However, since we do not have

          5  any tabulated form of the number of complaints, and

          6  you just hear from certain respected members of

          7  Community Board 7 and myself, you only have a party

          8  of X amount of folks.  Now if we had the data from

          9  311 and they could sequay and differentiate between,

         10  and this morning, believe it or not, the blimps came

         11  up, so if there was anyway they could differentiate

         12  the data as to helicopter complaints, where it is,

         13  how loud it is, and jet aircraft traffic, blimp

         14  traffic, this would be so helpful.

         15                 1.  It would get the FAA sit up and

         16  listen to us when they are working on their redesign

         17  project.

         18                 2.  We could also deal with the

         19  helicopter situation because we would have the data,

         20  we would know what people's main complaints were.

         21                 I also want to say that if we could

         22  have the data, we could pass it onto the FAA,

         23  Manhattan Borough President's Office, the local

         24  Community Board.  This is very important.  We have

         25  been working hard on this issue.
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          2                 Don't worry, I am going to wrap it

          3  up.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Good, Diana.

          5                 MS. SCHNEIDER:  I see you, when I go

          6  to Community Board 7, they go whoop, and they do it

          7  with the time thing, ding. So rather than she is

          8  getting the hook, I will finish this up.

          9                 I think you got the gist, so I do not

         10  have to be repetitive or redundant.  I want to thank

         11  you very much for letting me testify and participate

         12  in this meeting.  I think it is a great thing you

         13  are doing.  I think as it evolves, hopefully, 311

         14  can work with us.  And I did make a contact with him

         15  while he was here, and see if we cannot do something

         16  to make the skies above all of us safer, less

         17  polluted, and take back our skies in conjunction

         18  with 311 and this Board.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Thank you very

         20  much, Diana.  I think your point is a good one in

         21  the sense it could be generic, because it is a

         22  complicated issue.  But if you are, you meaning the

         23  generic sense of 311, working with a Community Board

         24  in its entirety, again generic, than people in the

         25  neighborhood will be able to assist in the
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          2  resolution.  And the neighborhood could include not

          3  only the Community Boards, but they too know some of

          4  the issues regarding the Helicopter Task Force and

          5  so on.

          6                 It is just one more example of that

          7  in order to really solve a problem, it is a

          8  collaborative partnership, and the community has to

          9  be involved.  And you are just one example of that.

         10  So thank you very much for bringing a specific

         11  example, but is actually applicable to even larger,

         12  because I sure there are other issues that are hard

         13  for 311 to follow by itself.  And they definitely

         14  need help.

         15                 Thank you very much.  This hearing is

         16  concluded. Thank you everyone for your testimony,

         17  and thank you, Jeff Haberman.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 2:55 p.m.)
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